

Cooper App Plugin Update Manual

Cooper™ App CRX Software Update Guide



Issue Date 03/20/25 © Lincoln Global, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

THE LINCOLN ELECTRIC COMPANY 22801 St. Clair Avenue • Cleveland, OH • 44117-1199 • U.S.A. Phone: +1.216.481.8100 • www.lincolnelectric.com



TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS	2
Section 1: Prerequisites	3
Section 2: Download Software from Cobot Resource Center	3
2.1: Format USBs	3
2.2: Download FANUC Controller Software	. 5
2.3: Download Cooper App Software	. 5
2.4: Image Backup of Current System	. 5
Section 3: Updating FANUC Controller Software	10
3.1: Update Controller Software	10
Section 4: Uninstalling Previous App Version	14
4.1: Cooper App Background Logic STOP	14
4.2: Cooper App Plug-In Uninstall	15
4.3: FANUC App – Cache Clear	16
Section 5: IO Setup	17
5.1: Confirm Virtual IO	17
5.2: Configure Virtual IO	18
Section 6: Cooper App Install & Configuration	21
6.1: Cooper App Plug-In Install	21
6.2: Cooper App Setup & Preferences	22
6.3: Migrate Existing Weld Data	24
6.4: Initialize Weld Data	25
6.5: Apply DCS Parameters	29
Section 7: Enable BG Logic (Wirebreak Torches only)	31
7.1: Re-enable Wirebreak BG Logic	31



Section 1: Prerequisites

Ensure that the following prerequisites have been met before continuing with the update procedure. Note that the entire update process will take approximately 3 hours.

- 1. The robot must have previously been set up with standard IO configuration to support the welder and payload data for the torch.
- 2. The robot must have options R796 (Ascii Program Loader) and R632 (KAREL) authorized and installed. R877 (Thick Plate Weld Pkg) is required if Thru-Arc Seam Tracking or Multi-pass welding will be licensed.
- 3. Three USB sticks will be required for this process. Recommended USB is SanDisk 8GB Cruzer Blade. Note it will be helpful for the subsequent processes to label the USBs 1 through 3 for clarity.
- For systems with a Power Ream Plus reamer, please contact service at <u>cobot support@lincolnelectric.com</u> or by phone at 1-888-935-3878 extension 3 to receive an updated license and steps to install.

Section 2: Download Software from Cobot Resource Center

2.1: Format USBs

Insert the first USB into your computer (*USB 1*). Open the File Explorer, select This PC from the left side menu then right click on the USB Drive. Note that the reformatting process will erase any data currently on the USB so ensure any needed files are saved prior to formatting.





From the menu, select Format.

avigation Details pane pane Panes	Extra large icons	Open Open in new window Pin to Quick access	Group by * Intern check boxes Add columns * Add columns to fit Hidden items Current view Show/Nide	e selected Opt items
∈ → × ↑ 💌 T	his PC -	Turn on BitLocker	Search This PC	
Presentations Voice of Custom OneDrive - Lincolr	V Folders (7)	Give access to Open as Portable Device 7-Zip Include in library	> > pp	
This PC 3D Objects	Docume	Pin to Start Format	bads	
 Desktop Documents Downloads 	Music	Eject Cut Copy	25	
Music Pictures	Videos	Create shortcut Rename		
Windows (C:)	Vindows (C	Properties	USB Drive (D:) 28.6 GB free of 28.6 GB	
🥪 USB Drive (D:) 🛫 BURSYS (\\corp.I	Alabuark locations (2))		
USB Drive (D:) BURSYS (\\corp.I modelshipsing nmfs1 (\\cpfs05u USB Drive (D:)	V Network locations (2) BURSYS (\/r	corp.le\sys\NCABUR)	nmfs1 (\\cpfs05.na.corp.le) (L:)	

To Format the USB, ensure File System is set to FAT32 and under Format Options, make sure Quick Format is selected. Next, click Start > OK > OK.

Format USB Drive (D:)	×
Capacity:	
7.50 GB	~
File system	
FAT32 (Default)	~
Allocation unit size	
4096 bytes	~
Restore device defaults Volume label	
Format options	
Start Close	

Once formatting is complete, close the popup. Right click again on the USB and select Eject then remove USB stick from computer.

Open in new window	
Turn on BitLocker	Search This PC
Give access to	>
Open as Portable Device	
7-Zip	>
Include in library	>
Pin to Start	
Format	
Eject	
Cut	
Сору	
Create shortcut	
Rename	
Properties);)

Repeat Section 2.1 for each of USB 2 and USB 3.



2.2: Download FANUC Controller Software

Note this process will take approximately 45 minutes – 1 hour to complete. Navigate to Lincoln Electric's Cobot Resource Center: <u>Cooper Welding Cobot Resources | Lincoln Electric</u>. Scroll down to the section titled *Cooper Welding Cobot Software* and select the download for the Approved FANUC Robot Controller Software Update for Cooper CRX Cobots (**V9.40P71_Auto_Update**). Note the Fanuc Tablet software update is now included in the Auto Update.

Insert *USB 2* into your computer and copy the downloaded zip file to the USB. Once copied, if not already, navigate to This PC / USB drive and right click on the copied zip file. Extract all files to the USB.



Once extracted, right click on the USB and select Eject. Remove USB stick from computer.

2.3: Download Cooper App Software

Note this process will take approximately 5 minutes. Navigate to Lincoln Electric's Cobot Resource Center: <u>Cooper Welding Cobot Resources | Lincoln Electric</u>. Scroll down to the section titled *Cooper Welding Cobot Software* and select the download for the Cooper App Software Update for Cooper CRX Cobots (Version 1.7). Right click on the downloaded zip file and extract the file.

Insert USB 3 into your computer. Copy the extracted file Cooper_App.ipl to the USB.

Once copied, right click on the USB and select Eject. Remove USB stick from computer.

2.4: Image Backup of Current System

Note this process will take approximately 40 minutes. From the FANUC reduced version of the dropdown menu on the left side, navigate to Teaching / Select Program. Scroll down to find the program titled 'ZERO'. Select this program then click Open.



12:46	LE_PROGRAM_2	X 100% 💯	*1 ¥. 73% Å	12:46 : :	LE_PROGRAM_2	沁 100% 喫
elect P	rogram		_	Select Pr	ogram	
rogN	em list 👬 Filter: -Al	LL- 🔻 Add		Progra	mlist Filt	er: -ALL- 🔻 Add
roduct	ion Program name	Sub type	5	No. 🗸	Program name	Sub type
chin	9 LE_PROGRAM	None	Open	28	LE_TAST	None
ito	LE_SUVAKS_TFAILER_COMP	None		29	MAAG_45	None
	t Program	None	New	30	MAAG_45_2ND	None
	MAAG_45	None		31	MAAG_45_3RD	None
	MAAG_45_2	None	Delete	32	MAG_FINS26	None
	MAAG_45_3 D	None		33	MAPLELEAF	None
sin	s MAG_FINS2►	None	Eaue	34	NONCOLLABTEST	None
E	MAPLELTAF	None	Save	35	NWS	None
	NUNCOLLABTEST	None	.	36	PROENERGY	None
5	NWS	None	Saveas	37	REACH_TEST	None
	PROENERGY	None	Shire	38	REACH_TEST2	None
	REACH TEST	None	Rename	39	RK	None
	REACH TEST2	None	E .	40	SHIPPING	None
	RK	None	details	41	TAST	None
	SHIPPING	None		42	TASTMAST	None
	TAST	None		43	TEST	None
2	TASTMAST	None		44	TESTTM	None
3	TEST	None		45	TPAIN	None
4	TESTTM	None		46	TRANSPORT	None
5	TPAIN	None		47	ZERO	None
ogra	am name ROGRAM_2			Progra	m name	
		Debet Opportion				

In the top right corner, ensure the Teach Pendant is enabled. Click RESET to acknowledge the alarms.

12:47 R	RO 🔽			×	100% 년		R
	SYST-0	45 TP enal	bled in Al	× JTO mode		- <u>(</u>	RESET
ZERO					2		
	Programmir	ıg			Details		_
Favorite	オ	•جر	<i>۲</i> *۶				
History			Circular	Circle Arc	Macro	Call	
All	Wait	3	For	Jump	Label	Output	
Motion	123					R	
Control	Registers	PayLoad	Comment	Code	User Frame Setup	Tool Frame Setup	
1/0	User Frame	Tool Frame	Weld Start	Weld End	Weld Start	Weld End	
ForceCtrl	Select	Select	(Unear)		Circle Arc	(Circle Arc)	
ArcTool	Weld Start (Standalone)	Weld End (Standalone)	Multi-pass Weld	Pause Contact Stop	Path Teach	Simple Searc	h
Other	2	1	S:	Я;	5	ā:	
	▲ Play			A Robot	Operation		

Select the Play tab in the bottom left of the screen. Hold the slider to FWD until the cobot moves to the Zero position. Once the cobot has stopped moving, ensure that the arrows on all six of the axis are pointing at each other as follows:







Insert USB 1 into the robot controller.



From the reduced version of the FANUC dropdown menu, navigate to Utility / File Backup. Click Front Panel USB (UD1) then select NEXT STEP at the bottom of the screen.





Select Create Directory and rename the directory to the F# of the cobot and the date of the cobot backup For example: F123456 – 01/02/2025. Click Go then select NEXT STEP at the bottom of the screen.





Select Full System and Image Backup then NEXT STEP at the bottom of the screen.



Select NEXT STEP at the bottom of the final screen and select YES on the popup asking to cycle power. Upon clicking yes, the system backup will begin automatically.







Once completed, you will be prompted to cycle power on the controller to being the image backup. Turn the power off on the controller, wait 10 seconds then turn it back on. The progress bar will show the time remaining in the backup. Once completed, remove the USB from the controller.



Section 3: Updating FANUC Controller Software

3.1: Update Controller Software

Click the center physical button on the left side of the tablet to minimize the TP App. Open the Settings App for the Samsung Galaxy Tablet. Using the search function, search for "Install unknown apps". Select the Tablet TP app and ensure "Allow from this source" is toggled to be on.







Note: If there is no option to "install from unknown app" or the Tablet TP app is not listed as an app with this option, the Tablet TP software update will need to be downloaded from the Cobot Resource Center and installed at the end of Section 3.

Insert *USB 2* into the robot controller. In the reduced version of the FANUC dropdown menu, navigate Utility / File. Open the legacy pendant from the bottom right of the screen and ensure the TP is enabled.



Click [UTIL]. Select option 1. Set Device then select option 6. USB Disk (UD:1).









Select row 1 * * (all files) and click Enter on the keypad.

15						
:= ") "	:_PROGRA	M_2		XI	00%	
	SYST-045	TP enabled	i in AUTO	mode		RESET
DDT: /			1.1	36		
2 *	KL (a	11 KAPEL	(auroa)			
3 =	CF (a	11 command	i files	•		
4 *	TX (a	11 text f:	iles)			
5 *	LS (a	11 KAREL	listing	1		
6 =	DT (a	11 KAREL	data fil	Les)		
7 =	PC (a	11 KAREL	p-code)			
в •	TP (a	11 TP prop	grans)			
g =	MN (a	11 MN prop	grame)			
10 =	VR (a	11 variab	le files	1		
11 *	SV (a	11 system	files)			
12 *	10 (1	/O config	datal			
13 *	DF (a	11 DEFAUL	files.)		
	[1996.]	(DR) L	GAD	(імскир)	(UTIL]	>
III SHIFT	[DPRL]	[DR] L	GAD F3 F4 EXCH	(IACKUP)	(UTIL)	SHIFT
III SHIFT	(1996)	EDIR) E	GAD F3 F4 SACH EAT GADA	(IACKUP) [75	furni, 1 Mext Teth	SHIFT
111 5+1171	ITANE I	(DIR) C F1 F2 Guiller	OAD F3 F4 SACH SACH SACH SACH STLD	(IACKUP)	(UTIL) NEXT TETN	SHIFT
5467	ITERI REF NUM		CAD F3 F4 EACH ECT SATA STLP SALA	(IMCKUP)	lume, 1 MEXX Ferm	SHIFT
SHIFT		(DR) (P1 P2 Quar (Quar (CAD F3 F4 EXCH CCT S47A STLP HOLD	(IACKUP)	LUTIN, I MEXIT RCTIN LUTIN LUTIN	SHIFT
SHIFT			CAD F3 F4 EXCH CAT GATA STLP HOLD	(MCKUP) (5 (1) (1) (1) (2) (2)	(UTIL) MEXT FCTN (UT) (UT) (UT) (UT)	SHIFT
5467			GAD F3 F4 KGH SACA CCT SACA STLD HOLD FAC BNG	(MCKL#)	(UTIL) MEXT FCTN (21) (22) (22) TW	SHIFT
111 SHFT		() () () () () () () () () ()	CAD F3 F4 KKF SKA KKF SKA HOLD F00 R00		рити, 1 меха ясти (21) (22) (24)	SHIFT
111 (SHIFT			DAD F3 F4 WAH KAT GAX HOLD HOLD F00 F00 F00 F00 F00 F00 F00 F0	(MCXUP) 75 (71) (71) (72) (72) (72) (72) (72) (73) (74) (75)	(UTIL.) MOR FETN (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2)	SHIFT
111 SHIFT			DAD F3 F4 WAH KAT GAX F100 F00 F000 F000 F000 F000 F000 F000 F000 F000 F000 F000 F000 F000 F00		(UTR.) SECT SCTN SCTN SCTN SCTN SCTN SCTN SCTN SC	SHIFT
III See1					1076,1 1070 1070 1070 1070 1070 1070 1070 10	SHIFT
III SHIT			CAD F3 F4 KASH KGT SAAA HOLD HOLD RAD RAD RAD	(IACKUP) (15) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2	1076, 1 1077,	BHIFT
170	TTYPEL		CAD F3 F4 KCF SAA FCF SAA HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD	(ACSUP) 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75	Mark I Sector Incon Inco	SHIFT

From the bottom menu, click the right arrow (>) then select [INSTAL].

SYST-045 TP en	abled in Al	UTO mode		RESET
D1:*.*		1/75		
1 SYSTEM VOLUME INFORM	ATI <di< th=""><th>R></th><th>SYSTEM VO</th><th>LUME</th></di<>	R>	SYSTEM VO	LUME
2 V9.40P65_AUTO_UPDATE	ZIP	35729278	4 V9.40P6	5_AUT
3 AP	MAP	349	AP	
4 APVERIFY	BAT	7129474	APVERIFY	
5 AUTOCEG	DAT	607	AUTOCFO	
6 AUTOCOLD	COM	1044	AUTOCOLD	
7 AUTOCTRL	COM	2619	AUTOCTRL	
8 AUTOFIN	CM	363	AUTOFIN	
9 AUTOINIT	COM	373	AUTOINIT	
10 AUTOUPDT	CM	2124	AUTOUPDT	
11 COLD1	COM	1805	COLD1	
12 COLDICUS	COM	31	COLDICUS	
SYSTEM VOLUME INFORMATIO	N. <di< th=""><th></th><th>_</th><th></th></di<>		_	
III [TYPE] [DWR]	IN. < DI	(BACKUP)	[VIIL]	>
	IONO IONO F F3	(BACKUP) F4 F5		>
ITTER VOLUME INFORMATIO	LOAD LOAD TIAON LLCT ERT ((BACKLP) F4 F3 Duta		>
INVEL (300)	LOAD LOAD THADH LLCT ERT ((BACHLP) 74 73 047 1109 (47)	IVIN. 1 NEXT ICIN SH	>
	LOAD LOAD E F3 TACH LC EDT E	(BACKLEF) F-4 F3 DUTA TTP (7) OLD (7)	lumu.) Next Next Next Next Next Next Next Next	<u>۲</u>
		(BACKLEF) 74 73 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75	Urn. 1 serr renv Sre renv renv renv renv renv renv renv re	> T
		THE CONTROL OF CONTRON	Urn. 1 Nor Nor Nor Nor Nor Nor Nor Nor Nor Nor) H
	LOAD 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 10	(BACHURF) F4 F5 DDA DDA TUP (J7) COLD (J7) COL	Nurul Marin Kana Kana Kana Kana Kana Kana Kana Ka	×
	LOAD LOAD TACH NUCT OF MUT MUT C MUT C	(BACHURF) F4 F5 pock T10 (2) T10 (2	24 24 25 25 25 34 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24	×







Name the folder with the F# of the cobot (i.e. F123456) and click Go. You will be prompted to restart the controller. Switch the controller off. Wait 10 seconds then turn the controller back on, this will begin the update process. **Warning: DO NOT POWER OFF controller while updating.**

_	i 🖬 🔸									e 🖷 82% û
:≡ •) ^{LE_I}	PROG	RAM_	2			× 1	00%	<u>m</u>	
FI Soft	ware keyb	oard								×T
Ente	r characte	rs								
UI F12	3456									
										_
Backup	Direc	tory	name:							
								Ð	л	
					6			[uner]		
		1000	-	14	TEACH	14		- NU.	SHIET	
		MENU		SELEC	1 10111	DA7A		FCTN	Serie 1	
_					_	_				
		(i)) _	T.		STEP	(10)	(m)		
							(20)	(01)		
(E12	3456			\rightarrow	_	(<i>J</i> 1) 	 		
<	F12	3456	*		→ I					
< 1	F12	3456 3	4	5 *	→ I	7	8	9	(o)	Del
< 1	F12 2	3456	4 ′	5	6	7	8	9	(0)	Del
< 1 q	F12 2 ^e W	23456 3 [°] e	4 [/] r	5 [×] t	→ 6 y	7 U	8	9	(0) P	Del
< 1 q	F12 2 ^e W	23456 3 [°] e	4 [/] r	5 [*] t	→ 6 y	7 [°] U	8 i	9	(0) p	Del
< 1 q	F12 2° W a	23456 3 ^{°°} e	4 ⁷ r	5 [×] t f	⊖ 6 y g	7 ⁻ U h	8 1 j	9 0 k	(0) p	Del 💌 Go
< 1 q	F12 2° W a	23456 3 ["] e s	4 ' r d	5 [%] t f	6 y g	7 u h	8 j m	9 0 k	(0) P	Del S Go
< 1 9 \$	F12 2° W a	23456 3 e s x	4 [/] r d	5 ³ t f v	6 y g b	7 u h	8 j m	9 0 k	(0) p I	Del © Go
< 1 Q Ctrl	F12 2° w a s z	23456 3 ⁴ e s x	4 [/] r d	5 [×] t f	G y g b English (L	7 ⁶ u h n	i j m	9 0 k	(0) P I	Del (C) (C) (C) (C) (C) (C) (C) (C)



Select option 1 Auto Update then click YES when it asks for the software to be updated.



Once the controller update has completed, a popup will be presented to install the latest tablet software. Click UPDATE. This will automatically download the tablet software. Click Install to begin the tablet software update. Relaunch the app after it has been closed.

Note: If you were unable to set "install from unknown app" at the beginning of Section 3, here you will be prompted to insert the USB with the Tablet TP software into the tablet. Follow the guided prompts to install.



If not automatically prompted to confirm payload, click RESET to clear alarms and confirm payload. Remove USB 2 from controller.

Section 4: Uninstalling Previous App Version

4.1: Cooper App Background Logic STOP

First step in the software update process is to STOP the Cooper App Background Logic to allow for an all-inclusive uninstallation of the older version of the Cooper App.

From the extended version of the FANUC left side dropdown, navigate to SETUP / BG Logic. From the BG Logic Screen, select each program with the prefix IPL_LE_COBOT to highlight it, and then press the STOP button. There should be NO programs with the prefix IPL_LE_COBOT running.



≔ 🔊 ^{LE_DE>™} 🕋 100% 🐖 🚛 🔃	≔ 🤊 ^{LE_DE>} 🖓 100% 🖼 🗾 🗋	
		Background logic FILE-067 UD1 Removed RESE
× H	×	Normal mode scan time: Basec 1/8 PROGRAM STATUS MODE 1 [Tel. 55_CONOT.G3 2 EEEEECTOINT.36 Formal 2
UTILITIES as instal > successfully!	Port Init Successfully!	3 Stop Normal 4 Stop Normal
TEST CYCLE	Ovrd Select	5 Stop Normal 6 Stop Normal
MANUAL FCTNS	User Alarm	7 Stop Normal 8 Stop Normal
alarm 🕨	Error Table	
I/O ►	iPendant Setup	
SETUP 🕨	BG Logic	
FILE ►	Resume Offset	
USER	Resume Tol.	
SELECT	Weave	
EDIT	Touch Frame	
DATA	Touch I/O	
STATUS ►	Host Comm	
4D GRAPHICS	ZDT EOAT Setup	>IPL_LE_COBOT_GLOBALFREEHANDTEACH
SYSTEM ►	FILE	
USER2	USER	▲ Play ▲ Robot Operation

4.2: Cooper App Plug-In Uninstall

From the FANUC reduced version of the dropdown navigate to PLUGINS / Plugin List.





From the FANUC Plugin List ensure that Cooper_App is highlighted. Scroll down on the page until the Uninstall button is shown. Click on "Uninstall" and then OK on the pop-up to confirm the uninstallation of the Cooper App. Note, the teach pendant will need to be enabled. Cycle power on the controller once the app has successfully been uninstalled by manually switching the controller off then turning it back on.

322 * ♥ ♥ Hugin List Cooper_App	🔌 100% 👼 🗾	322 ¥¥ ELE_PRO Plugin List	9GRAM_4917 🗙 100% 🔤	azz (* 1 Plugin List	LE_PROGRAM_49	اي المراجع
Description		Description Cooper_App Provider:	Lincoln Electric Company Inc.	Descript Cooper_ Provider	Press OK if you really "Cooper_App" P	would like to uninstall lugin software.
Cooper_App Provider : Lincoln Electric C: Application : Cooper_App Version : 1.0.0 Description : Cooper Cobot Uss Lincoln Electric Collaborative Robe Designed to Simplify the Program Welding Routines on a Cobot. Cop Global, Inc.	ompany Inc.	Persion : Description : O Description : O Lincoln Electric CC Designed to Simpl Welding Routines Global, Inc.	Lob Cooper Cobot User Interface lify the Programming Process of on a Cobot. Copyright 2023 Lincoln	ELECTRIC Version Descript Lincoln Designe Weiding Global, I	OK Hechic Consuder the Action of 1 to Simplify the Programming Routines on a Cobot. Copyrig Inc.	er antertake Process of It 2023 Lincoln Uninstall
	14 75 uxt 1000 000 1000 1000 000 000 1000 0,0		IV IV<	9457		I I-4 F3 Mart B* (a) (c) (c) B* (c) (c) (c) B* (c) (c) (c) G* (c) (c) (c) G* (c) (c) (c) G* (c) (c) (c)
▲ Play	Robot Operation	Pla	ay A Robot Operation		▲ Play	▲ Robot Operation

4.3: FANUC App – Cache Clear

From within the FANUC Timeline application swipe the screen from the left to the right to expose the Clear Cache option. Press the Cache Clear button and then OK. Once the cache is cleared, the FANUC Timeline application will close and you will be required to restart the FANUC Application.





Section 5: IO Setup

5.1: Confirm Virtual IO

From the expanded version of the FANUC dropdown menu, navigate to IO / Digital. Select CONFIG.

≔ ↑ ^{POINTTEST™ 🗛 100% 🗾 🕅}	L 🔚 🔊 POINTTEST 🏾 🎧 100% 🚎 🚛 🖸	Ĩ
UTILITIES Hints	I/O Digital Out	
TEST CYCLE FAIL FOOL TEST CYCLE FAIL FOOL ALARM FINITION ALARM FINITION FINITION TO FINITION FINITION TO FINITION FINITION TO FINITION FINITA FINITION FINITION FINITION FINITION FINITA FINITA FINITA FINITA FINITION FINITA	# SIM STATUS 1/512 D0[1]* [] D0[3]* [] D0[4]* [] D0[5]* [] D0[6]* [] D0[6]* [] D0[6]* [] D0[7]* [] D0[6]* [] D0[7]* [] D0[1]* [] D0[16]* [] D0[16]* [] D0[16]* [] D0[18]* [] D0[19]* [] Sorted by port number.	
VODUL UOP 		I
📲 🔺 Play 🥻 🔺 🔺 Robot Operation	▲ Play ▲ Robot Operation	1



Confirm that the last range of DO's (DO[256-512]) is set as below. If set correctly, click IN/OUT then CONFIG and confirm the same range is also set correctly for the DI's. If both DI and DO are configured correctly, continue on to Section 6: Cooper App Install & Configuration.

I/O Digita	POINTT	EST☑		100	% İ <u>ərə</u> i	2
# 1 D0 (2 D0 (3 D0 (4 D0 (5 D0 (6 D0 (7 D0 (RANGE 1 - 80 85 - 100 101- 112 113- 128 129- 255 256 - 512	RACK 48 0 48 90 90 0 0	SLOT STR 0 1 1 1 0 2	ART STAT. 0 UNASG 13 ACTIV 0 UNASG 1 ACTIV 1 ACTIV 0 UNASG 558 ACTIV	7	7
Device N	lame : Mem	Port				
	[TYPE]	MONITOR	IN/OUT	DELETE	? HELP	
	▲ Play			▲ Robot O	peration	ļ.

5.2: Configure Virtual IO

Select the last range of DO's and if not already, set the range from 256 – 512. To set the range, select the first number of the last range. Open the legacy TP and verify you are still on the same screen. If needed navigate back to CONFIG. Using the number keys enter the value to be 256 and press ENTER. The last range should now read [256 – 512].





Select the 'START' value. Using the number keys on the legacy TP set the value to 258 and press ENTER. Select IN/OUT to switch over to the DI's.



Select the last range of DI's and if not already, set the range from 256 – 512. To set the range, select the first number of the last range. Open the legacy TP and verify you are still on the same screen. If needed navigate back to CONFIG. Using the number keys enter the value to be 256 and press ENTER. The last range should now read [256 – 512].





Select the 'START'. Using the number keys on the legacy TP set the value to 258 and press ENTER. Cycle power on the controller to apply the changes.

	🙀 100% 🐖 🗾 🗋
I/O Digital In	
7/7 7/7	LFFT/RIGHT SHIFT PREV F1 F2 F3 F4 F5 ND/T
5 DI[113-128] 90 1 1 MOT V 6 DI[129-255] 0 0 UNAS 7 DI[256-512] 0 200 PRND	
	7 8 9 WELD 800 7(11) 1(1) 4 5 6 WEE CODE (1) (1) 1 2 3 WHE Group (4) (4)
Device Name : MemFort	
▲ Play	▲ Robot Operation

Once the controller has restarted, navigate back to IO / Digital. Select CONFIG and verify that the changes have been applied. The STAT. of DO & DI [256 – 512] should now be set to ACTIVE.

≣	5	POIN	TTE	ST☑		ſ	100	% I	7	Ø
I/O D	igita	Out								
								-	7	
#	DO [RANGE 1-	80]	RACK 0	SLOT 0	START 0	STAT. UNASG		, ,	
2	DO[81-	84]	48	1	13	ACTIV			
4	DO[101-	112]	48	1	1	ACTIV			
5	D0 [113-	128]	90	1	1	ACTIV	_		
7	DO [256-	512]	ő	0	258	ACTIV			
Douti	no N		MomP	ort						
Devid	ce N	ame : I	Memro	Ort						
		[TYPE]	N	MONITOR	IN/	оυт	DELETE	? HELP		
		▲ Pla	ау				Robot O	peration		



Section 6: Cooper App Install & Configuration

6.1: Cooper App Plug-In Install

Insert *USB 3* with the file Cooper_App.ipl in it. The Cooper_App.ipl should be at the root level and not located within a folder. It should be named exactly '*Cooper_App.ipl*'. If multiple copies of the app have been downloaded i.e. Cooper_App(1).ipl, please rename the file and ensure there are NO spaces in the name. From the FANUC reduced version of the dropdown, navigate to PLUGINS / Install.



Verify that the version of the software to be installed is correct by referencing the Description -> Version. Once confirmed press Install -> OK buttons and wait for the install to complete. Note, the teach pendant will need to be enabled. The installation process will take a few minutes (5 - 10). The message "Plugin software successfully installed!" will be shown if successful. Cycle power on the controller by manually switching the controller off then turning it back on.



Install ARC -045 Weld EQ is OFFLINE	☐	□ LE_CONSECT 100% № ↓ Install
	Install	Install
	Press OK if you really would like to install "Cooper_App" Plugin software.	Plugin software successfully installed! Please re-start the controller by manually shutting the power off.
Description		
Cooper_App Provider : Lincoln Electric Company Inc. Application : Cooper_App Version : 1.5.0 Description : Cooper Cobot User Interface	Provider : Lincoln Electric Company Inc. Application : Cooper_App Version : 1.4.0 Description : Cooper Cobot User Interface	
Press Install Button to install the Plugin software. Install I	Press Install Button to install the Plugin software.	

6.2: Cooper App Setup & Preferences

Following power cycle, the Cooper App will automatically be launched on restart. First, select the language you would like the app to be displayed in.





Once select, you will be presented with the End-User License Agreement. Please read the terms outlined and click Accept.



Once accepted, you will be presented with a QR code that when scanned will redirect you to tutorial videos, manuals, and other resources for your Cooper Cobot system. Click Close to continue.





6.3: Migrate Existing Weld Data

If you have existing custom welds saved in the Cooper App that do not follow the updated Cooper App format:

Weld Procedure #:

Schedule 1: Main Bead/Weld Parameters Schedule 2: Crater Fill Parameters

You be prompted with the following notification and will be guided through steps to resave these welds in the app.

① Cooper A	pp 1.0.0 required weld d	ata format in the Fanuc control
	Weld Procedure Schedule 1	Primary weld schedule
	Schedule 2	Crater fill schedule
Additiona number, i weld data	ally, different weld data c e. each procedure numb a.	annot refer to the same proced er must be unique for any giver

Clicking next will list out all the existing custom weld data currently saved to the Cooper App. Check off the custom weld schedules you would like to migrate. Note: some weld data may be incompatible to migrate at this stage. If data is incompatible, an explanation will be provided as to why this custom weld cannot be resaved at this step. Any incompatible data in NOT deleted from the Fanuc Controller and can be re-imported directly to the Cooper App following setup. Once selections are made, click Start.

Data M	igration	Data Migration	-
This migration process will chang Fanuc controller with the propose you would like to migrate. Any dal unselected can be re-imported int	e the weld data stored in the d changes. Please select the data a that is incompatible or is o the Cooper App later.	This migration process will change the weld data stored in the Fanuc controller with the proposed changes. Please select the you would like to migrate. Any data that is incompatible or is unselected can be re-imported into the Cooper App later.	data
Custom-7 Procedure 17	\sim	Custom-5 Procedure 15: Schedule 2	
Custom-6 Procedure 16	\sim	Incorrect Format: Primary weld schedule must be schedule 1	
Custom-2 Procedure 13	\sim	Duplicate Weld Procedure: There's other weld data using this weld procedure; weld data must have a unique procedure	
~	L →	ب v	
Start	Go Back	Start Go Back	



A prompt will ask you to confirm if you are sure of the adjustments made to your custom welds before proceeding. It also mentions that any weld data not able to be migrated will show up as "Unnamed" in the Cooper App program which used it. These welds will need to be re-imported to the app and reset in their respective programs. Click Proceed to begin the migration process.



Once the migration has been completed. A list of the remaining un-migrated data will be displayed. These custom welds still exist on the Fanuc controller and will need to be re-imported within the app and updated on their respective programs. Click Done.

Data Migration Complete					
The selected weld data has been successfully migrated! Please see below for a list of weld data that was NOT migrated to the new format. References to this weld data have been deleted in the Cooper App, but the data remains untouched on the controller. In order to use this weld data in Cooper, you will have to re-import the data.					
Custom-2 Procedure 13: Schedule 1					
Custom-5 Procedure 15: Schedule 2					
Custom-4 Procedure 15: Schedule 1					
Custom-3 Procedure 14: Schedule 2					
~					
Done					

6.4: Initialize Weld Data

Finally, you will be prompted to reselect your consumables. Select the appropriate Wire Type, Wire Size, and Gas Type present on your system. This will load in improved Weld By Number parameters for your respective consumables. If you are not using Weld By Numbers or the consumables you are using on your system are not listed in the dropdown selections, you can instead select Skip to reimport your custom weld data. Once consumables have been selected, press OK to load in the weld-by-number weld database. This process will take approximately 3 minutes to complete.





If you opted to skip loading Lincoln Electric's Weld By Number parameters or if you have additional custom Weld Procedures available on the cobot, you will be presented with the option to import Custom Weld Data into the Cooper App. Here you will be prompted to name the custom weld data and select which procedure and schedule to import.







If you would like to set a crater fill on your weld, drop down the arrow for Additional Data and select the corresponding schedule from the weld procedure you are importing which has your crater fill parameters.

3	Ø	1			@	
	Edit	Welder	Undo	d D et	Settings	
	mpor	t Custo	m wei	d Data	a	
	Nam	ne				
		Te	est			
	Sele	ect Weld Dat	ta to Impo	rt		
	We	ld Procedure				
		13	E .	\sim		
	Wei	ld Schedule				
		1		\sim		
	Add	itional Data	ŝ.	~		
				~ 1	-	
	Import			Go Back		
	mport			OO BUCK		

	٦	ELECTRI	C	~
8	Ø	9 C) (Ú	<u>{</u>
	Import C	ustom V	Veld Dat	а
15	Name	Test		
-	Select W	/eld Data to Ir	moort	
-	Weld Prot	cedure		
-		13	\sim	
-	Weld Sch	edule		
1		1	~	
	Addition	al Data	^	
	Crater Fill	Schedule (option	al)	
		2		
	Import		Go Back	

Once you have made all your desired selections, click Import.





If the weld procedure being imported is not already in the format required for the Cooper App, the weld data will be copied to a new weld procedure number upon import. The Cooper App weld data format has been updated to support crater fill and is now as follows:

Weld Procedure #:

Schedule 1: Main Bead/Weld Parameters Schedule 2: Crater Fill Parameters

Note: if no crater fill is set, schedule 2 will hold the same weld parameters as schedule 1. Click OK to acknowledge the popup indicating which weld procedure number your data was copied to upon import.



You will be brought back to the import custom weld modal. If there are additional welds you wish to import, you can repeat the above process to import. If you are finished importing custom welds, click Exit.





You have now successfully updated the Cooper App!



6.5: Apply DCS Parameters

Now that the app has been updated, you will need to apply the revised DCS parameters. In the expanded version of the left-side menu, navigate to SYSTEM / DCS.





From the bottom ribbon of the DCS menu click [APPLY]. You will be prompted to enter a code, open the legacy TP and enter "1111" on the keypad then click ENTER.



Click OK then you will be prompted to cycle power on the controller.

E_ PROGRAM_1 →	N 100% 🛒 🗾 🗋
DCS SYST-212 Need to apply to DCS p	aram 🔲 🖻 🔚 RESET
Verify (diff) 1 Versifon 1793755 12 VERSION: LR ArcTool SVERSION: V9.40396 8/2/2024 DATE: 17-FEB-25 11:07 DCS Version: V4.5.9	./2146
Collaborative robot	OK OK OK OK
Ш ли с	ж олт
▲ Play ▲ R	obot Operation





Section 7: Enable BG Logic (Wirebreak Torches only)

7.1: Re-enable Wirebreak BG Logic

From the expanded version of the FANUC left-side menu, navigate to SETUP / BG Logic.



From the BG Logic screen, there should already be two programs starting "IPL_LE_COBOT" that are set to "Running". To utilize the wire break torch functionality, a third program will need to be enabled. Select the next available BG Logic slot and press [CHOICE]. Select the program "IPL_LE_COBOT_WIREBREAKWITHFEED" by double clicking if the wire break torch has a button to feed wire located on the torch, otherwise select "IPL_LE_COBOT_WIREBREAK" by double clicking.



LE PROGRAM 126D Destgraum bpc Writing inde start times From Market Lines Wreece From Market	MODE Normal Normal Normal Normal Normal Normal Normal	2/8	<u></u> 1	Beckground Lool	PROGRAM 1:	26 1 7		0	3/8	
							SZARCH			
H (104)	NA 5100	(54002) C1549		Ħ	PROGRAM	NAGIO	KANKI.	000		>

Press RUN to start the program. All three programs should now have STATUS set to "Running".

	🐪 100% 🛒 🗾 🗋		🐪 100% 🖼 🎦 🛛
Beckground logic		Beckground logic	
Normal south each line Normal Frontain 1 ITL, LH, CONTY P. Fanning Normal 2 ITL L CONTY P. Fanning Normal 3 ITL L CONTY P. Fanning Normal 5 ITL SCONT P. Fanning Normal 6 Stop Normal 8 Stop Normal	3/9	Roreal mode stant Line Money FROMEW CONT - Control FROMEW CONT - Control State L CONT - Control State State State State State State State	3/8
T		-191, LE, COROT, WIRESAMERITMITED	
The lane interest	CLEAR	Invel pow stop invocei	CLEAN .

You can now navigate back to the Cooper App from the left-side menu under PLUGINS / Cooper App and the app is ready to use!